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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Chief Executive Officer

Credit Suisse AG — Mumbai Branch

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Credit Suisse AG ~ Mumbai branch
(‘the Bank’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Profit and Loss Account,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, provisions
of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the circulars, guidelines and directions issued
by the Reserve Bank of India {"RBI’) from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Bank in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘the
Standards’) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

B S R & Associates (a partnership firm with Registered Office
Registration No. BAB9226) converted into 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus,

B S R & Associates LLP {a Limited Liability, Apollo Mills Compound
Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8182) N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Report on the Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Bank's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as
well as the relevant requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required for banking
companies and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 March 2017,

(b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Bank for the year ended on that
date; and

{¢) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Bank for the year ended on
that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

As required by sub section (3) of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report that:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

(b) the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of
the Bank; and

Further, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we further report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Bank has only one branch and the financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralized,
therefore accounting returns are not required to be submitted. We have visited the Bank’s

branch for the purpose of our audit;
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Report on the Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(h)

the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Fiow Statement dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, to the extent they are not inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by the
Reserve Bank of India;

the requirements of Section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable considering the Bank is a
branch of Credit Suisse AG, which is incorporates and registered in Switzerland;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A";

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Schedule 5 and 12 to the financial statements;

(i1) the Bank did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Schedule 5 and 12 to the financial
staternents;

(iii)  there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Bank; and

(iv) as referred in Note 18 (E) (12) of the financial statements, the disclosure required on
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8
November 2016 to 30 December 2016 as envisaged in notification GSR 308(E) dated
30 March 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, is not applicable to the
Bank.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Actountants
Firm's Registration No: 1 1623/] W/W 100024
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i\shwinh 'Suvarna

Mumbai Partner
19 June 2017 Membership No: 109503
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ANNEXURE A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
Financial Statements of Credit Suisse AG — Mumbai Branch

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Credit Suisse AG— Mumbai
Branch (‘the Bank’) as at 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*1CAI).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act’).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing (‘the Standards’), issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by the ICAL

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

The bank’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The
bank’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the bank; {2) provide reasonable assurance that
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ANNEXURE A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
Financial Statements of Credit Suisse AG — Mumbai Branch

(Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (Continued)

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the bank are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the bank; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such intemnal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 11 5723'1 W/w-100024

] Ashwin Suvarna
Mumbai { Partner
19 June 2017 Membership No: 109503
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CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017
(Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

Schedule 2017 2016
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capita! 1 11,350,000 11,350,000
Reserves & surplus 2 8,687,712 6,290,473
Deposits 3 29,235,725 66,975,648
Bomrowings 4 13,251,438 19,840,601
Cther liabilities and provisions 5 5,731,595 9,773,458
Total 68,256,470 114,220,130
ASSETS
Gash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 1,677.404 1,038,440
Balances with banks and Money at call and short notice 7 223,641 18.312,253
Investments 8 50,553,708 68,611,387
Advances 9 10,598,421 18,198 145
Fixed assets 10 8,988 5,702
(nher assets 11 4,794,308 5,064,253
Total 68,256,470 114,230,180
Gontingent liabilities 12 753.788.042 1,408,750.708
Bills for collection
Significant accounting policies & notes to accounts 17 18

Schedules referred fo above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet,
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Associates LLP

Chartdred Alzountants
Firm uerrmn No. 116231Wi
i v

n Suvarna
Partres
Membership No. - 109503

Place : Mumbai

Date : IEJUNE 29‘:’

For Credit Suisse AG - Murnbai branch

i

Rajiv Baruah
Chief Exacutive Officer

Place - Mumbai

pate: |G TUNE 201}

Neil BRaradwaj
Chief Operating Officer




CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbal branch

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Currency: indian rupees in thousands)

Schedule 2047 2016
AI. INCOME
Interest earned 13 5,556,479 7,249,797
Other income 14 2,605,837 873,574
TOTAL 8,162, 8,123,371
’II. EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 5 3,324,640 4,758,767
Operating expenses 16 764,297 772,178
Provigions and contingences 1,876.133 1,145,864
TOTAL 5,765,07 5,676,8
HIIL PROFIT
Net profit for the period 2,397.23 1,446 56
Prafit brought forward
TOTAL 2,397,2 1,446,56
v, APPROPRIATIONS
Transfers to
Statutory Resanves 599,210 361,641
Investment Reserve - -
Rermittable surplus retained in India for CRAR purposes 1,797,929 1,084,924
Profit Remitted 1o Head Office
Balance carried over to the balance sheet
TOTAL 2,397,23 1,446,56
Significant accounting policies & notes to accounts 17, 18

Schedules referred to above form an intagral part of the profit and foss account
As per our report of even date attached

4
For B § R & fmsoctates LLP

Ch A_.im‘n!ants
Fiem Fuokisifalion No.: 11623 1Wss100024

Rajiv Baruah
Chie! Executive Officer
Membership No. : 109503
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : | TUNE 2017

RSN

Date : Iﬂ_ﬂh“g 2—0‘ q’

For Credit Suisse AG - Mumbai branch

Neil Bharadwaj

Chisf Operating Officer




CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March , 2017
{Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

207 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 4235 072 2 838 078
Adiustments for -
Depraciation on fixed assets 2,249 8,697
Provision for standard asset (including provision toward unhedged foreign currencyl {112,322} 27,494
exposure)
Pravision for country risk (49,377) 25,856
Fixed asset writtan off -
4,075,622 2,601,128

Adjustments for -
{Increase] in investments 18,067,679 13,182,567
(Increass)/Decrease in advances 7,199,724 14,519,347}
Increase/{Dacrease) in deposits (37,739,923} 4,151,024
(Decrease} in borrowings (6,589,183} (4,700,133}
(Increase) / Dacreass in other assets 324211 (1,558,818}
Increase / (Decreass) in other liabilities and provisions (3.880,183) 2,578,229

(19,709,735} 9,113,711
Taxes paid 1,810,000 1,170,006
Net cash from operating activities (A) (17,444,113) 10,544,831
Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work-in-progress} {5,535} (3G}
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (5,535) {361)]
Cash flows from fingncing activitias
Procesds from issuance of Capital -
Net cash generated from financing activities ) . O

{17,449,648) 10,544,470
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st Apnil 19,350,653 8,806,223
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 1,901,045 19,350,693
Notes to cash flow statement:

1 Cash and cash equivalents includes the following:
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 1,677.404 1,038,440
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 223,641 18.312.253
1,901,045 19,350,693
2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

As perou nﬁmn of even date attached

)
I\*uociates LLP -

OIS AT

Fm N ATE23 1100024
|

i L o

AT b P

A Suvarna

Pa

Mambership No. : 109503

Place : Mumbai

pate: 1 TONE 2.017

For Cradit Suisse AG - Mumbai branch

—\

——

Rajiv Baruah
Chiaf Exacutive Officer

Place : Mum
Date :

2007

Neil Bh
Gvef Cparating Offficer



CREDIT SUISSE

Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

{Currency: Indian rupees in thousands}

2016

Schedule 1: Capital

Head Office Account
At the beginning of the period
Additions during the period

Total

Deposit kept with the Reserve Bank of India under Section 11 {2) (b) of the Banking Regulation Act
. 1949,

11,350,000

11,350,000

11,350,000

11

1,750,000

1,250,000

i

Schedule 2 : Reserves and Syrplus

Statutory Reseves
Opening balance

Additions during the period
Deductions during the period

Capital Reserves

Opening balance

Additions during the period
Deductions during the period

1,592,565
589,310

2,191,875

1,230,624
361,641

1,502,564

Share Premium

QOpening balance

Additions during the period
Deductions during the period

[nvestment Reserve

Opening balance

Additions during the period
Deductions during the periad

Remi lys retaived in Indiz for
Opening batance

Additions during the peried
Deductions during the period

8,320

4,688,588
1,787,929

9,320

3,603,664
1,084,924

Balance in Profi Loss A

Total {1+ 10+ 1N 4 IV + V4 V)

6,486,617

4,688,588

Sth Floot,
€/ Lodha Excelus.
g [Apoilo Mills Cospound.
N. M. Josh! Marg.
Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai - 400 011




CREDIT SUISSE

Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

2016

Schedule 3 : Deposits
A 1 Demard depasits
i) From banks
ii) From others
I Saving bank deposits
Il Term deposits

i} From banks
ii) From others

Total (1 + 11 + M)

| & i} Deposits of branches in India
i) Deposits of branches outside India

Total

4,841,847

25324

105,492

34254

66,835,892,

66.975.648|

hedule 4 : Borrowin:

[ Borrowings in India
i) Reserve Bank of India
) Other banks

6,182,784

19,840,601

Total {1 + 10+ 1N+ IV + V)

i) Other institutions and agencies
6,182,788 19,840,601

L8 Borrowings outside India 7,068,650

Total (I + I} 13,251,438 19,840,601

Secured borrowings included in ) and |l above 5,182, Ted 189, 540,601
|Sshedule 5 : Other liakilities and provisions
| Bills payable
rl. Inter-office adjustments {net) 5
Il Interest accrued 3,615,879
Iv. Provision for taxes (net) ]
V. Provision against standard assets - including UFCE prowvision of Rs 89,406 thousand (Previous Year 318,425

Rs 135,818 thousand )
us Others (including provisions) 5,839,15

Sth Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

N. M. Joshi Marg,
Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai - 400011



CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

{Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

206
|Schedule & : Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India
I. Cash n hand 208)
I, Balances with Reserve Bank of India
i) In current account 1038135
ii} In other accounts
Tolal (1 + 1) 1038 4401
1. In Indin
) Balance with banks
(a}in current accounts 413, BEH
(b} in other deposit accounts
i} Money at call and shart notice
{a) with banks :
(b)) with other institutions 613,774
Total 1,026,643)
. Quiside India
i} in cuent accounts 17,285,610
ii} n other deposit accounts
) Money at cal and short notice -
Total 17,285,610]
Total (1 + 1) 153122531
[Schedyle 8 : Investments
. Investmeants in India in
i} Government securities 5,402,765 35,640,743
ii) Other approved securities
iii) Shares - -
iv} Debentures and bonds 23,942,648 32,493,399
v) Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures 5 .
vi} Others (Commercial Papers) 1,208,295 475,245
Total 50,553,708] 68,611,387
Less: Provision for depreciation
Total (1) 50,553,703' 68,611,387
3, 8
§th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,
o fApelle Milis Compound 1
* N. M. Joshi Marg, ‘,\

Mahalaxml,
G\ Mumba: - 400019
o India.




CREDIT SUISSE

Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

{Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

207

206

Investments outside India in

i) Government securities (including lacal authorities)
i} Subsidharies and/or joint ventures abroad

it} Other investments

Total

Provision for Depreciation

Total ()

Total {1 + 1)

50,553,708

68,611,387

i) Bills purchased and discounted
i} Cash credils, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand
iii) Term laans

Total

i) Secured by tangible assets
i} Covered by bank/Government guarantees
iii) Unsecured

Total

Advances in India
1) Pricrity sectors

i) Public sector

iii} Banks

) Others

Total

©.508.421
1,400,000

9,827,985
8,370,160

10,998,421

18,198,145

101,490

10,896,931

2,238,419

15,858,726

10,998,421

18,198,145|

3,770,231

7228790

4,108,725

14,080,419

10,998,421

18,1 98.145'

Lodha Excelus.
o Milis Compoun
M. M Joshi Marg.

Mahataxml,
Mumba - 400 913




CREDIT SUISSE

Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

(Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

2017

2ME

C.ll.  Advances outside India

i) Due from banks

i) Due from others
{a} Bills purchased and discounted
{b) Syndicated loans
{c} Others

Total

Total (C.1and C.I)

10,998,421

18,198,145

hedule 10 : Fix

I Premises

At cost at the beginning of the year
Additiens during the year

Deductions during the year

Depreciation to date
Totat

I.  Other Fixed Assets (including furniture and fixtures)

At cost at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Deductions during the year

Depreciation to date
Total

Total (I + 1)

71,464
5,535

71.103

3

76,999

71,464

76,999
(68,011

(55, 762)

71,464

8,988

5,702

8,983

5,702|

5th Floar,
| Lodha Excelus,
@ [Apolio Mills Compound

N, M_ Joshi Marg,




CREDIT SUISSE

Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

{Currency: Indian rupees in thousands)

xmr 20mE

l. Interest accrued 494,724 1,878,738

Il Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at source (Net of provisions) 380,863 312,241
IIII. Deferred ax assets (Net) 151,141 247,595
IV, Stationery and stamps

i Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - .
Wi Others 3,767 580 5625679

Total 4,794,308 8,064,253

hedule 12 :

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
Liability for partly pard investments . .
! Liability on account of outstanding Foreign exchange cantracts 543,513,315 1,153,5678,205
IV, Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

{a} In India

{b} Outside India
. Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations
i, Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable
{i} Capital commitments not provided
(1) Purchase of investiments g -
(i) Liability on account of outstanding derivative contracts THRLITA,TIT 255,172,503

Total 753,788,04. 1,408,750,708|

'E_Buis"
SN 8
.e'r b\, 'H_‘\N
f Yo

51h Floor,

¢y / Lodha Excelus,
[ m [Apotio Mills Compound
| N. M. Joshi Marg,
\ * Mahalaxmi,

QLN Mumbai - 400 011




CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

Schedules Annexed To and Forming Part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March, 2017

2017 2016
Schedule 13 ; Interest camed
1. Interest / discount on advances / bills 1,332,559 1,138,360
1. Income on investments 3,753,284 6,054,643
11, Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-bank funds 85,222 914
V.  Others 385,407 55,880
Total 5,556,472 7,249,797
|Schedule 14 ; Other income
1 Commission, exchange and brokerage 60,995 22,786
il Profit / (loss} on sale of investments {net) 1,552,720 (106,890
111 Profit / (loss} on revaluation of investments (net)
V. Profit / (loss) on sale of land, buildings and other assets (net) - -
V. Prafit / (Loss) oo exchange transactions [net) (inchuding profit / {kass) on derivative transactions) 953,604 913,085
V1. Income camed by way of dividends etc. from subsidiaries, companies and / or joint venturres abroad
in [ndia = S
VI Miscellaneous income 3518 44,593
Total 2,605837| 873,574
hedule 15 : Interest Expended
1 Interest on deposits 2,016,179 2,464,586
I, Interest on Reserve Bank of India / inter-bank borrowings 52,358 3
13 Others 1,256,103 2,294,178
Total 3,324,640 4,758,767
Schedule 16 : Operating Expenses
L Payments to and provisions for employees 448,468 466,682
IL Rent, taxes and lighting 44,266 50,476
111 Printing and stationery 747 1,267
IV.  Advertisement and publicity 85 247
\4 Depreciation on Bank's property 2,249 8,697
VI Directors' fees, allowances and expenses - -
VIL  Auditors' fees and expenses 3315 2825
VIIl. Law charges - .
D¢ Postages, telegrams,telephones, eic. 47,137 40,408
X. Repairs and maintenance 10,485 8,931
XI.  Insurance 76,391 72,594
XIl,  Other expenditure 131,154 120,048
including group cost allocation expenses Rs 22,493 thousand (Previous Year: 24,834
thousand]
including Corporate Social Responsibility expenses Rs 54,852 thousand (Previous Year: Rs
46,249 thousand)
Total 764,297 TTLITS

th Floor,

Lodha Excelus.

Apollo Mills Compound,

- N. M. Joshi Marg.
Mahalaxmi,

Mumbas - 400 011
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CREDIT SuiSSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

a)

i)

i)

ili)

b)

Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.
Schedule 17 - Significant Accounting Policies

General
Background

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 comprise the
accounts of the Mumbai branch (referred to as ‘the Bank') of Credit Suisse AG which is
incorporated in Switzerland, with limited liability.

In August 2010, the Bank’s head office at Zurich, Credit Suisse AG, received the approval of the
Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI') for setting up a Bank Branch. The Bank commenced its banking
business with effect from February 15, 2011 after obtaining the necessary clearances and
approvals from the RBI.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention
and accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated and are in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (*GAAP"), statutory requirements prescribed under the
Banking Regulation Act 1949, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI')
from time to time and the notified Accounting Standards {‘AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 to the extent
applicable and the current practices prevailing within the Banking industry in India.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities
on the date of financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision in the accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

Investments

Classification and valuation of investments is carried out in accordance with extant RBI guidelines
on investment classification and valuation.

Classification:

Investments are accounted for on settlement date basis and are classified at the date of purchase,
based on the intention at the time of acquisition, into Held for Trading ('HFT’}, Available for Sale
{(‘AFS’) or Held to Maturity ('HTM’). Under each of these categories, investments are further
classified under six groups viz. Government Securities, Other approved securities, Shares,
Debentures and Bonds, Subsidiaries and / or joint ventures and Others.

Acquisition cost:

Cost of investment excludes broken period interest paid on acquisition of investments. Brokerage
and commission on debt instruments paid at the time of acquisition are charged to Profit and Loss
Account. Cost of investments is determined on the weighted average cost basis.
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Disposal of Investments:

Profit / Loss on sale of investments under 'Available for Sale' and ‘Held for Trading' categories
are taken to the Profit and Loss Account.

The profit from sale of investment under HTM category, net of taxes and fransfer to statutory
reserves is appropriated from Profit and Loss Account to Capital Reserve Account. Loss on sale,
if any, is recognized fully in the Profit and Loss Account.

Valuation:

Investments classified under the 'Available for Sale' and ‘Held for Trading' categories are valued
periodically as per RBI guidelines. The market/fair value for the purpose of periodical valuation of
quoted investments included in the 'Available for Sale' and ‘Held for Trading' categories is the
market price of the security available from trades/quotes on the recognized stock exchanges,
subsidiary general ledger account transactions, price list of RBI or prices declared by Primary
Dealers Association of India jointly with Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association
(FIMMDA), periodically. All non-SLR securities are valued by applying the mark up above the
corresponding yield on GOI securities as directed by RBI. The net depreciation, if any, in each
classification as mentioned in Schedule - 8 — ‘Investments’ is recognized in the Profit and Loss
Account. The net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

Discounted instruments like treasury bills, certificate of deposits, commercial papers are valued at
carrying cost.

Securities categorised under HTM are carried at acquisition cost, or at amortised cost if acquired
at a premium over the face value. Such premium is amortised over the remaining period to
maturity of the relevant security on a straight line basis. Where in the opinion of management, a
diminution, other than temporary in the value of investments classified under HTM has taken
place, suitable provisions are made.

Investment Reserve Account:

Provision for depreciation on investments in the AFS and HFT categories, if excessive is credited
to Profit and Loss account and equivalent amount {net of taxes and net of transfer to Statutory
Reserve as applicable) is appropriated to an Investment Reserve Account in Schedule 2 —
Reserves and Surplus under the head Investment Reserve Account.

Utilisation: The provision required to be created on account of depreciation in the AFS & HFT
categories is debited to the Profit and Loss Account and an equivalent amount (net of tax benefit,
if any and net of consequent reduction in transfer to Statutory Reserves) is transferred from the
Investment Reserve Account to the Profit and Loss Account.

Transfer between categories:
Transfer of securities between categories of investments, if any, is accounted for at the acquisition
cost / book value/ market vaiue, whichever is lower, as on the date of transfer.

Repurchase (Repo) and reverse repurchase transactions:

Repo, Reverse repo transactions and Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligations (CBLO)
entered with CCIL are considered as lending and borrowing transactions and reflected in assets
and liabilities, as the case may be. The difference between the clean price of the first leg and the
clean price of the second leg is recognised as interest expensefincome over the period of the
transaction.
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<)

d)

e)

Advances

Advances are classified into standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets, as applicable, in
accordance with the RBI guidelines and are stated net of provisions, if any, (except general
provision) made towards non-performing advances in line with RBI guidelines.

The Bank also maintains a general provision on standard assets (including derivatives) to cover
potential credit losses, in accordance with the RBI guidelines.

The Bank estimates the inherent risk of the unhedged foreign currency exposures (including
derivatives) of its borrowers as per the regulatory guidelines stipulated by the RB! from time fo
time and recognises incremental provisions on exposures to such entities as per methodology
prescribed. These provisions are included in Provision for Standard Assets and reported under
Other Liabilities.

Country risk exposure provision

The Bank maintains provision for individual country exposures (other than for home country) in
accordance with RBI guidelines.

Derivatives

The Bank enters into derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps,
options and foreign exchange contracts for trading purposes.

These trading derivatives are recognised at their fair values on inception and subsequently marked
to market (MTM) on a daily basis. The resultant gain or loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account. Unrealised gain or loss on these products is reflected in the Balance Sheet under Other
Assets or Other Liabilities respectively.

Foreign currency options are marked to market and premium received / paid is recognized in the
Profit and Loss Account upon expiry or exercise of the options whichever is earlier.

The Bank also maintains a general provision on derivative exposures computed on the marked to
market value of the contracts in accordance with the RBI guidelines.

The Bank estimates the inherent risk of the unhedged foreign currency exposures of its borrowers
as per the regulatory guidelines stipulated by the RBI from time to time and recognises
incremental provisions on exposures to such entities as per methodology prescribed. These
provisions are included in Provision for Standard Assets and reported under Other Liabilities.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all
expenses incidental to acquisition of the assets.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a straight-line method over the economic useful life of
the asset as determined by the management. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is provided
from the month in which the asset is capitalised. In respect of sales/disposals no depreciation is
provided in the month in which the asset is sold / disposed off. Depreciation on the following
items of Fixed Assets is charged over the estimated useful life of the assets on a straight line
basis which is equal to the rates prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013:
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g

Asset Depreciation
Leasehold improvements Period of lease
Furniture and fixtures 10.00%
Office equipment 20.00%
Computer Equipment
Distributed technology 16.67%
End user technologies 33.33%
Network 16.67 %
Cabling 16.67%

Assets costing less than Rs.4,50,000 are written off in the year of purchase / acquisition. The
threshold for write off is subject to the following conditions:

» Furniture and fixtures are capitalised if the aggregate cost of a purchase order for
procurement exceeds Rs.4,50,000.

s Computer equipment including workstations, laptops, printers, monitors, servers, peripherals
and technical equipment are capitalised regardless of purchase cost. All other computer
related equipment such as mainframes, tape drives, power supplies and data center
equipment are capitalised only if individual cost exceeds Rs. 4,50,000.

e The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Profit and Loss Account to the
extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their estimated recoverable amount.

Transactions involving Foreign Exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Balance
Sheet date at rates of exchange notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India
('FEDAI') and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the rate of exchange on the date of the
respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled
during the year are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss Account.

Outstanding foreign exchange contracts in the trading book are revalued at the rates prescribed
by FEDAI as at the Balance Sheet date and for the foreign exchange contracts with longer
maturities where exchange rates are not notified by FEDAI are revalued at the exchange rates
implied by the swap curves in respective currencies. These values are discounted using
appropriate curves and the resulting profit or loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

In respect of foreign currency deposits, which are swapped into Indian Rupees under the special
window of the RBI notified under FMD.MOAG.No.84/01.06.016/2013-14 dated September
06,2013, the forward premia (i.e. the difference between spot and forward rates of exchange) is
pro-rated aver the tenure of the swap and recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. The
exchange difference on a forward exchange contract i.e. the difference between (a} the foreign
currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date, or the
settlement date where the transaction is settled during the reporting period, and (b) the same
foreign currency amount translated at the latter of the date of inception of the forward exchange
contract and the last reporting date, is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

5th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

N. M. Joshi Marg,
Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai - 400 011



LY
CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

h)

)

k)

Contingent liabilities on account of foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, acceptances,
endorsements and other obligations denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed at the
closing rates of exchange nofified by FEDAI.

Revenue Recognition

+ Interest income is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account on an accrual basis.

s Accretion of discounts is recognised as interest income over the life of the discounted
instrument.

¢ Fee income on loans are recognized over the tenor of the underlying loans on a straight line
basis.

¢ Other fees and commission income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of agreement.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax {i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961} and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax
sffects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period). The
deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are
recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the assets
can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward
loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent there is virtual certainty
of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and
written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case
may be) to be realised.

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Bank creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recongnised in the
pericd in which the change occurs.

Operating lease transactions
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of

the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries, bonus, allowances
and compensated absences. The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefit to be paid
in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the service is rendered by the
employees.

Employees can carry forward a portion of unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it
within three months following the year in which it accrues, failing which it lapses.

Post employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

The Bank makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to
Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Banks's contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit plan
The Bank's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan.

The Bank's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit scheme is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any
unrecognised past service cost and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The
calculation of the Bank’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

The Bank recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. All expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Share based payments

The Branch grants shares in its ultimate parent, Credit Suisse Group to certain employees. Upon
settlement, the shares are transferred to its employees. The Branch has various schemes to grant
share based awards to its employees.

These schemes are classified as cash settled schemes. The cost of these cash-settled
transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date. This fair value is expensed over the
period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability is
remeasured to fair value at each balance sheet date up to and including the setilement date with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the period. In case an
employee is eligible for early retirement or retirement before the end of the vesting period, the
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recognition of the expense is accelerated over the shorter period up to retirement. Changes in
foreign exchange and market value of the above liability between grant date and settlement date
are expensed to the statement of profit and loss.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks
and money at call and short notice.
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Schedule 18 - Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31,

2016

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

1. Capital Adequacy

The Bank's Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (‘Capital Adequacy Ratio’) is calculated in
accordance with the RBI's ‘Basel lll Capital Regulations’ (‘Basel III'). Under the Basel lli
framework, for the year ended March 31, 2017, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum
capital adequacy ratio of 10.26% (including Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 1.25%) on an
ongoing basis for credit risk, market risk and operational risk.

The Bank's capital adequacy ratio, calculated in accordance with the RBI guidelines for Basel llI
framework, is as follows:

of which
Debt capital instrument:

Preference Share Capital Instruments:
[Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares
(PCPS} / Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable

Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)]
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[ Sr.No. | Particulars [ _March 31,2017 March 31,2016 |
i) Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (%) | 34.20% 25.62%
i) Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 1 34.20% 25.62%
i) | Tier 2 capital ratio (%) 1 0.37% ] 0.55%
v) Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (%) | 34.57% 26.17%
v) Percentage of the shareholding of the | . .

Government of India in public sector banks |
vi) | Amount of equity capital raised | -
vii) Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital raised; of i

which

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference

Shares (PNCPS).

Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI):
viii) Amount of Tier 2 capial raised; T -
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2.

Investments

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of investments and the
movement of provision held towards depreciation on investments of the Bank.

(Rs in crore)

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

1. Value of Investments

(i) Gross value of investments

a) InIndia

6,055.37

6,861.14

b} Qutside India

(i) Provision for depreciation

a) InlIndia

b) Outside India

(i) Net value of investments

a} InIndia

5,055.37

6,861.14

b} Outside India

investments

2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on

(i) _Opening balance

(i) _Add : Provisions made during the year

during the year

(i) Less : Write-off/ wrile back of excess provisions

{iv) Closing balance

Repo transactions

The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of securities sold and purchased
under repo and reverse repo in face value terms:

(Rs in crore)

Year ended March 31, 2017 Minimum Maximum Daily average | OQutstanding
outstanding | outstanding outstanding balance
balance balance balance during
during the during the the year
year' year
Securities sold under repo
i. Governmeni securities 1.04 1,992 .64 279.10 604,20
ii. Corporate debt securities - - -
Securities purchased under reverse repo
i. Government securities 0.96 2919.26 43417 23.09
ii. Corporate debt securities S . B _
1, Mimmum outstanding during the year excludes days with Nil outstanding.
2. Includes LAF done with RBI.
{Rs in crore}
Year ended March 31, 2016 Minimum Maximum Daily average | Qutstanding
outstanding outstanding outstanding balance
balance balance balance during
during the during the the year
year' year
Securities sold under repo
i. Government securities 1.00 1,754.66 710.45 1,541.90
ii. Corporate debt securities - - - -
Securities purchased under reverse repo
i. Government securities 4.90 854.61 52.70 60.00

ii. Corporate debt securities

Minimum outstanding during the year excludes days with Nil outstanding.
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4, Non-SLR investment portfolio

i) Issuer composition of Non SLR investments

The following table sets forth, the issuer composition of investments of the Bank in securities,
other than government and other approved securities at March 31, 2017.

(Rs in crore)

Sr. | Issuer Amount Extent of | Extent of | Extent of | Extent of
No. private ‘below ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
placement investment securities | securities
grade’
securities
(0] PSUs . . .
257.41
{ii) Fls 1,125.05 265.00 c e S
i) Banks 186.37 170.00 - -
{iv) Private corporates 937.26 385.58 - 225.58
{v) Subsidiaries / Joint ventures - - - - -
{vi} Others - - - -
(vii) | Provision held towards -
depreciation
Total 2,515.09 820.58 - - 225.58

The following table sets forth, the issuer composition of investments of the Bank in securities,
other than government and other approved securities at March 31, 2016.

(Rs in crore)

Sr. | Issuer Amount Extent  of | Extent of | Extent of | Extent of
No. private ‘below ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
placement investment securities | securities
grade’
securities
(i) PSUs
174.73 i
i} Fls 1.254.61 100.00 -
iii) Banks' 506.10 - - -
{iv) Private corporates 1,361.42 360.28 - 100.00
(v} Subsidiaries / Joint ventures - - - -
{vi) | Others - -
{vii} | Provision held towards -
depreciation
Total 3,296.86 460.28 - - 100.00
1. Reptesents cerificate of deposits.
i) Non performing Non-SLR investments

The bank did not have any non performing non-SLR investments as at / for the year ended March
31, 2017 {Previous Year: Nil).

5. Sale and transfer to/from HTM category

There were no sales or transfer to/from HTM category during the current year and previous year.
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6. Forward rate agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swaps

The Bank has not traded in FRA during the year and hence disclosure pertaining to FRA is not
applicable. {Previous Year: Nil).
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of the interest rate swaps.

(Rs in crore)

Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
i} The notional principal of swap agreements’ 21,027.47 26,063.66
i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed 119.96 142.75
to fulfill their obligations under the agreements®
iii) Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into swaps - -
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps (% 85.35% 92.53%
exposure to banking sector)
v) The fair value of trading swap book 40.84 62.34

1. Excludes cross currency interest rate swaps.
2. Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements rapresent positive mark-to-

market.

Mature and terms of interest rate swaps

(Rs in crore)

Nature :‘zr:;hmark Terms March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Trading | MIBOR GLE e e AT 4,766.62 3,789.17
Receivable
Trading | MIBOR Fixed Receivable v/s Floating 3.665.85 3,000.86
Payable
Trading | MIFOR LT e L U 22 6,809.00 11,811.00
Receivable
Trading | MIFOR Fixed Receivable v/s Floating 5,786.00 6,244.00
Payable
Trading | LIBOR Fixed Receivable v/s Floating 218.63
Payable
Total 21,027.47 25,063.66
7. Exchange traded interest rate derivatives
(Rs in crore)
:g’ Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
{) | Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest
rate derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument
wise)
a) APR 16 NSE 759G52026 0.10 -
b} AUG 16 NSE 759GS2026 517 -

(ii}

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest
rate derivatives outstanding as on

(iii)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest
rate derivatives outstanding and not ‘highly effective’

(iv)

Mark to market value of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives outstanding and not ‘highly effective’

e
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8. Risk exposure in derivatives
a) Structure and organization for management of risk exposure in detivatives

The Bank is supervised by the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and the Local Management
Committee (‘LMC") comprising of key senior management in the Bank and permanent invitees
from various functions with Credit Suisse. The LMC is supported by other committees for specific
areas like the Asset Liability Management Committee (*ALCO"), Credit committee, Investment
committee, Audit committee, Compliance committee etc.

There are processes and policies in place to support activities planned in the Bank. Apart from
local policies, the Bank also adheres to Global Credit Suisse policies and best practices.

b) Scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting, risk monitoring systems and
policies for mitigating risk

Credit risk management

Credit risk implies probable financial loss the Bank may ultimately incur, if the counter parties fail
to meet their obligations. Within Credit Suisse, the Credit Risk Management (‘CRM’) is
responsible for managing Credit Suisse’s portfolio of credit risk and establishes broad policies
and guidelines governing Credit Suisse’s credit risk appetite. CRM team is headed globally by the
Chief Credit Officer (*CCO"} who reports directly to the Chief Risk Officer (‘CRO") of Credit
Suisse. Credit authority is delegated by the CCO to specific senior CRM team personnel based
on each person's knowledge, experience and capability. These delegations of credit authority are
reviewed periodically. Credit authorisation is separated from line functions. At Headquarters in
Zurich, the Capital Allocation and Risk Management Committee (‘CARMC’), in addition to its
responsibilities for market risk described below, is also responsible for maintaining credit policies
and processes, evaluating country, counterparty and transaction risk issues, applying senior level
oversight for the credit review process and ensuring global consistency and quelity of the credit
portfolio. CARMC regularly reviews credit limits measuring country, geographic region and
product concentrations, as well as impaired assets and recommended loan loss provisians.

Credit Suisse utilises an internal counterparty rating scale assess the probability of default, which
approximates that used by the major public rating agencies (ranging from AAA as the best to D as
the worst) and applies this grading measure against all of its counterparties. Credit Suisse takes a
proactive approach to rating each of its counterparties and obligors and, as a result, internal
ratings may deviate from those assigned by public rating agencies. All counterparties are assigned
a credit rating as noted above. The intensity and depth of analysis is related to the amount,
duration and level of risk being proposed together with the perceived credit quality of the
counterparty/issuer/obligor in question. Analysis consists of a quantitative and qualitative portion
and strives to be forward looking, concentrating on economic trends and financial fundamentals.
In addition, analysts make use of peer analysis, industry comparisons and other quantitative tools,
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including a quantitative model based rating system. All final ratings also require the consideration
of qualitative factors relating to the company, its industry and management. In addition to the
aforementioned analysis, all counterparty ratings are subject to the rating of the country in which
they are domiciled. Analysis of key sovereign and economic issues for all jurisdictions is
undertaken and these are considered when assigning the rating and risk appetite for individual
counterparties.

Each facility (funded and non funded) is approved by senior CRM team personnel who are
experienced in making lending decisions. The Bank leverages the CRM team expertise and
processes within Credit Suisse to manage credit exposures arising from business transactions.
The Businesses would be responsible for managing transactions within specified counterparty
credit limits like Single Borrower and Group Borrower limits as prescribed by RBI, in consultation
with CRM team.

Market risk management

Market risk deals with the probable losses the Bank may ultimately incur as a result of movement
in exchange rates, benchmark interest rates, credit spreads etc.

Globally, Credit Suisse ensures that market risk is comprehensively captured, accurately
modeled, reported and effectively managed. Trading and non-trading portfolios are managed at
various organizational levels, from the overall risk positions at the Group level down to specific
portiolios. Credit Suisse uses market risk measurement and management methods designed to
meet or exceed industry standards. These include both general tools capable of calculating
comparable exposures across our many activities as well as focused tools that can specifically
model unique characteristics of certain instruments or portfolios. The tools are used for internal
market risk management, internal market risk reporting and external disclosure purposes. The
principal measurement methodologies are VaR, risk sensitivities and scenario analysis.
Additionally, the market risk exposures are also reflected in our economic capital calculations. The
risk management techniques and policies are regularly reviewed to ensure that they remain
appropriate,

The Bank uses Value at Risk (VaR) and Interest Rate Sensitivity (Dv01} as some of the key
measures of monitoring market risk arising from transactions. Market and Liquidity Risk
Management (MLRM) reviews the Bank's business requirements and approve suitable limits in
consultation with the business. Scenario analysis results are reported to the ALCO & Local
Management committee on quarterly basis.

The Bank’s market risk exposure is an aggregate of banking book and trading book exposures.
Treasury desk is responsible for banking book exposures within the Bank, unless another desk is
specifically authorized to run such exposures. Trading desk (FX/Derivatives/Bonds etc.) would run
positions within their mandated market risk exposure limits.
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¢) Refer note e and g under ‘Schedule 17 - Significant Accounting Policies’ for accounting
policy on derivatives

The following table sets forth the details of derivative positions at March 31, 2017

(Rs in crore)

Sr.
No

Particulars

Currency derivatives’

Interest rate derivatives

0

Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

a) For hedging

54,351.33

b) For trading 21,027.47
(i) | Marked to Market Positions®
a) Asset (+) 172.57 119.96
b} Liabitity {-} 431.25 79.12
(i) | Credit Exposure 1,478.87 338.71
(iv) | Likely impact of one percentage change in
interest rate {100*PV01)
a) on hedging derivatives 0 -
b) on trading derivatives 0.95 {10.44)
{v} | Maximum and Minimum of 100*PVO1
observed during the year
a) i) on hedging (Maximum) 0.03
i} on hedging (Minimum) {0.80) 5
b) i} on trading (Maximum) 1.85 (7.22)
i} on trading (Minimum) {1.02) {87.56)

1.
2,

Includes forward exchange contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps.

Pertains o MTM on trading positions.

The following table sets forth the details of derivative positions at March 31, 2016

{Rs in crore)

Sr. Particulars Currency derivatives' | Interest rate derivatives
No
{i) | Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
a) For hedging 4,936.00 -
b) For frading 110,875.41 25,063.66
{ii) | Marked to Market Positions?
a) Asset (+) 60.55 142.75
b) Liability {-) 64.19 80.41
(iii) | Credit Exposure 2,388.49 356.85
(iv) | Likely impact of one percentage change
in interest rate (100*PV01)
a) on hedging derivatives (0.74) -
b) on trading derivatives 1.52 (22.27)
(v) | Maximum and Minimum of 100*PVO1
observed during the year
a) i) on hedging (Maximum) (0.74)
i) on hedging (Minimum) {4.02) -
b) i) on trading (Maximum) 4.52 44,14
ii) on trading (Minimum) 1.52 {22.27)

1. Includes forward exchange contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps.

Pertains to MTM on trading positions.
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9. Asset Quality

The Bank has no non-performing advances, accounts restructured, sale of financial assets to
Securitisation / Reconstruction company or purchase / sale of non-performing financial assets
during the year ended March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).

Additionally, the Bank has not invested in security receipts backed by NPAs, sold by the Bark as
underlying or backed by NPAs sold by other banks / financial institutions / non-banking financial
companies as underlying during the year ended March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).

There was no divergence in asset classification and provisioning exceeding the specified
thresholds and hence, detailed disclosures are not applicable pursuant to RBI circular no.
DBR.BP.BC.N0.63/21.04.018/2016-17 dated 18 April 2017.

10. Provisions on Standard Assets

The Bank makes provision on standard assets as per applicable RBI guidelines. The provision on
standard assets (including provision towards unhedged foreign currency exposure of Rs 8.94
crore (Previous year: Rs. 13.58 crore)) held by the Bank as at March 31, 2017 was Rs. 20.61
crore (Previous Year: Rs. 31.84 crore).

11.  Business Ratios

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Interest income as a percentage to working funds' 6.94% 7.42%
Non-interest income as a percentage to working funds 3.26% 0.89%
Operating profit? as a percentage to working funds' 5.09% 2.65%
Return on assets® 2.99% 1.48%
Business (Deposits plus advances) per employee* (Rs in crore) 98.13 224.14
Profit per employee* {Rs in crore) 5.85 3.80
Definitions:

1. Working funds is taken as average of total assets (excluding accumulated losses, if any) as reported to
Reserve Bank of India in Form X under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

2. Profit before taxes and provision is considered as Operating profit.

3. Return on Assets is with reference 1o average working funds (i.e. total of assets excluding accumulated
losses, if any).

4. Number of employees as at year end has been considered (41 employees (PY 38 employees)).
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12. Maturity Pattern of Key Assets and Liabilities

(Rs in crore)

More
asial 2ta7 8to 14 15t0 20 D:;" rr':::“mhzs "o‘;:::s :::rﬂ'ss yg:: ;::d 3::‘;: Over 5
z:;';h n, Day 1 days days days a:: |z.|p and up and s|.|plo and 1|lllt0 upta 3 u::l:s Years Total
to3 years
Months months months year years
Deposits’ 30788 1087 735 | 16645 | 40250 | 111480 [ 27285 51003 | 4008 2,023.57
Loang &
advances' 100.00 142.67 10.15 435,00 a72.02 40.00 S 1,090.84
investmonts 204643 | 2522 765 2291 64.25 101.92 129.93 151.72 8.12 093 | 5.086.37
Borrowings' 618.28 : | w213| 16213 | 38280 1325.14
Foraign
Cumrency ,
P 718 o2 142.92 15.45 262,02 s ] 45.40 463.12
Foraign
Currency y " o0 3
Liabilties? @mn 012 163.95 162,88 383.17 1820 T.03
1. Includes foreign currency balances.
2. Foreign currency assets and liabilities denote all assets and liabilities excluding off-Balance Sheet items.
3. Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets are compiled by the Management on
same estimates and assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the returns submitted to the RBI.
(Rs in crore)
More
1510 31 Days than 2 x:fmss [ Qver 1 0::':
As at March Day 1 2to 7 Bto14 30 and up moenths and upto months year and ym d Over 5 Total
31, 2016 ¥ days days to2 and up and upto upto 3 Years
days Months to3 s 1 year years upta §
months years
manths
Deposits’ 1.34 241.32 1.00 [ 199.95 17.07 703.37 95.89 | 543049 7.13 6,697.56
Loans &
advances' 100 | 132.51 B 80.00 304.92 | 1,153.89 1,819.81
Investments 3,173.39 | 3.316.45 8,92 1.85 0.70 184 9.89 324.14 23.92 0.24 6,861.14
Bomgwings' 1,984.06 1,984.06
Foreign
Currency 1,726.58 0.06 | 132.53 48.77 033 274.92 178.89 59.63 2,423.68
Assels?
Foresgn
Cumency 0.01 0.46 5,307.23 5,307.70
Liabilities*
1. Includes foreign currency balances
2. Foreign currency assets and liabilities denote all assets and liabilites excluding off-Balance Sheet items.
3. Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturty buckets are compiled by the Management on same estimates

and assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the returns submitted to the REI.
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13.

131

Exposure

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of exposure to real estate

sector.
(Rs in crore)
Category March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
a) Direct exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages —
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is
or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented; (Individual
housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances
may be shown separately) -
{i) Commercial Real Estate —
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office
buildings, retail space, multi-purpose cormmercial premises, multi-
family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, iand acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also
include non-fund based {NFB) limits; -
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures — -
a. Residential,
b. Commercial Real Estate.
b) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs). 413.23 378.66
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 413.23 378.66
- \
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13.2 Exposure to Capital Market

14,

(Rs in crore)

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

{i} direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds
the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

(i) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares
(including IPQs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds;

(i) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds are taken as primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / converiible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
“does not fully cover the advances;

{v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

{vi} loans sanciioned 1o corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies
in anticipation of raising resources;

{vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /
issues;

{viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect
of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;

{ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;

{x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds {both registered and
unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

Note: The Bank has invested in Non-Convertible Debenture of book value Rs. 225.58 Cr

secured by pledge of shares.

Risk Category wise Country Exposure

{Previous Year: 100 Cr)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of exposure (net) and provision

held by the Bank.

{Rs in crore)

Mahalaxmi,

Risk category Exposure (net) at Provision held at Exposure {net) at Provision held at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016
Insignificant 27.09 - 2,054.45 4.94
Low 217 - 2.29 -
Moderate - -
High -
Very High -
Restricted -
Off-credit - . -
Total 29.26 2,056.73 4.94
-Of which: funded 12.78 1990.41 4.94
™
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15. Details of Single Borrower Limit and Borrower Group Limit exceeded by the Bank

The Bank's exposure to single and group borrowers has been within limits* as specified by RBI
during the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016.

*During the year ended March 31, 2016, there was an instance of a technical excess of Single
Borrower Limit {*SBL’) in respect of one counterparty on account of exchange fluctuation on loans
in foreign currencies. Due to this technical excess, the SBL of 15% was exceeded, however, it
was below 20%. In accordance with the RBl's Master circular on exposure norms, the Local
Management Gommittee has ratified this technical excess. Further, this matter was also informed
to the RBI.

16. Unsecured advances
The Bank has not made any unsecured advances against intangible securities such as charge

over the rights, licenses or authoritisations etc. for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Previous Year:
Nil). This excludes advances backed by guarantees.

17. Penalties levied by the RBI

No penalties have been imposed on the Bank during the year by the RBI {Previous Year: Nil).
18. Employee Benefits

1. Provident Fund

Amount of Rs. 2.09 crore {Previous Year: Rs 2.08 crore) is recognised as expense and included
in “Employee benefit expenses”

2. Gratuity
(Rs in crore)

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the
present value of the defined benefit obligation

Present value of obligation as at April 1 4.48 3.65
Interest cost 0.32 0.28
Current service cost 1.30 1.20
Benefits paid (0.81) (0.05)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation (1.75) (0.61)
Present value of obligation as at March 31 3.54 4.48

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the fair
value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at April 1

Expected return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/(ioss) on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at March 31 - -
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19.

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

Fair value of plan assets as at March 31

Expected return on plan assets

Present value of obligation as at March 31 3.54 4.48
Asset/(Liability) as at March 31 (3.54) (4.48)
Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss Account
Interest Cost 0.32 0.28
Current Service cost 1.30 1.20
Expected return on plan assets -
Net Actuarial (gain}/loss recognised in the year {1.75) (0.81)
Net Cost 0.13) 0.87
Assumptions March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Valuation Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit
Discount rate 7.10% per annum 7.95% per annum
N.A. N.A.

Mortality

Ultimate

IALM (2006-08)

IALM (2006-08) Ultimate

Salary escalation rate

8.00% per annum

11.00% per annum

Retirement

68 years

58 years

Details of plan assets, defined benefit obligations and experience adjustments

(Rs in crore)

Particulars Gratuity

31-Mar-17 | 31-Mar-16 | 31-Mar-15 | 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Defined benefit obligations 3.54 4.48 3.65 2.34 1.30
Plan assets - - - - ;
(Surplus) / deficit 3.54 4.48 3.65 2.34 1.30
Experience adjustments on plan
assets - - - -
(Gains) / losses due to change in 0.52 0.21
Assumptions (1.56) {0.29) 0.09
Experience adjustments on plan 0.01 0.03
liabilities (0.18) (0.31) (0.11)
Total (Gain) / Loss (1.74) {(0.60) 0.53 0.24 (0.02)

Employees Share-based Payments
Employees Share-based Payments

The Branch grants shares in its ultimate parent, Credit Suisse Group to certain employees. The
Branch has various schemes to grant share based awards to its employees, details of the current
schemes are set out below. In conformity with the Guidance note on “ Accounting for Employee
Share-based Payments” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in respect of

the grants made on or after 01 April 2005, the following disclosures are made:
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(1)  Special awards, which are typically awarded upon hiring of certain management personnel or in
relation to business acquisitions. The terms (including amount, vesting, settlement, etc} of special
awards vary significantly from award to award. Shares awarded to employees as Special awards
are accrued over the vesting period as per award terms.

(2)  Jan 2014/)Jan 2015/Jan 2016/Feb 2017 Phantom shares vest in three equal instalments on each of
the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date and will be delivered to award holders
within 120 days of vesting. The share awards replace other plans introduced in prior years,
including SISUs and ISUs in an effort to make the design of the company's compensation
instruments simpler, more transparent and less leveraged and to better align the interests of the
employees with those of the shareholders.

{3) InMarch 2016, the CSG executed a voluntary exchange offer, under which employees had the right
to voluntarily convert all or a portion of their respective CCA into Contingent Capital share awards
at a conversion price of CHF 14.567. Each Contingent Capital share award had a grant-date fair
value of CHF 14.45 and contains the same contractual term, vesting period, performance criteria
and other terms and conditions as the original CCA.

{4) Performance share awards

Certain employees received a portion of their deferred variable compensation in the form of
performance share awards, which are subject to explicit performance-related claw-back
provisions. Performance share awards vest over three years, such that one third of the share
awards vest on each of the three anniversaries of the date of the award. Each performance share
award granted entitles the holder of award to receive one CSG share. Unlike the Phantom share
awards, however, the unvested performance share awards are subject to a negative adjustment in
the event of a divisional loss or a negative CSG ROE. Unvested performance shares are subject
to a negative adjustment in the event of a divisional loss, unless there is a negative CSG ROE that
would call for a negative adjustment greater than the divisional adjustment for the year, in which
case the negative adjustment is based on the CSG's negative ROE. For employees in Shared
Services, the negative adjustment only applies in the event of a negative CSG ROE and is not
linked to the performance of the divisions. Performance share awards include a two-year
moratorium on early retirement, determined from the grant date.

(5) Plus Bond Awards

Certain employees received a portion of 2012 deferred variable compensation in the form of Plus
Bond awards. The Plus Bond award was essentially a fixed income instrument, denominated in
US doliars, which provided a coupon payment that was commensurate with market-based pricing.
Plus Bond award holders were entitted to receive semi-annual cash payments on their adjusted
award amounts at the rate of LIBOR plus 7.875% per annum until setflement. The Plus Bond
settled in July 2016 based on the amount of the initial award less any portfolio losses, in excess
of a first loss portion retained by CSG of USD 600 million. The value of the Plus Bond awards
was based on the performance of a portfolio of unrated and sub-investment-grade asset-backed
securities (ABS) that were held in inventory by various trading desks. The Plus Bond award plan
contributed to a reduction of CSG's risk-weighted assets and constituted a risk transfer from
CSG to the Plus Bond award holders. Final payout upon settlement of these awards was 100%
of the amount awarded.
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a. Method adopted for valuation:

Stock compensation expenses under the *Fair Value Method” are determined based on the “Fair
Value of the Share Awards” and amortized over the vesting period.

b. Nature and extent of Employee Share-based Payment Plans:

Phantom Share Awards, Special Share Awards, Performance Share Awards, PAF 2 Awards and
Plus Bond Awards.

c. Number of stock awards granted during the current year ended March 31, 2017
Nil Special Phantom Share Awards (previous year: 1,465) granted during the year;
7,234 Performance Share Awards {previous year: 44,508) granted during the year;
18,702 Phantom Share Award (previous year: 48,714) granted during the year;

The average weighted fair value of awards granted was CHF 16.42 (previous year: CHF 18.12)
excluding Plus Bond awards.

d. Method and assumptions for Fair Value of Share Awards
)} For Plus Bond Deferred Cash Awards;
The fair value of share awards is derived from underlying fair value of the reference
portfolio
ii) For other Employee Share based Payment Plans:

The fair value of share awards is equal to the fair value of the shares at the grant date,
adjusted for changes in market price as at the balance sheet date.

e. Expenses recognized on account of “Employees Share-based Payment” is
Rs. 6.62 crore (previous year: Rs. 2.65 crore) and carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 is
Rs. 9.02 crore (previous year: Rs. 8.71 crore).
20. Segment Reporting
The segmental classification to the respective segments conforms to the guidelines issued by RBI
vide DBOD.No.BP.BC.81/21.01.018/2006-07 dated April 18, 2007. As required under the above

guidelines the following business segments have been reported

s Treasury primarily includes trading and money market operations, Investment Banking,
derivatives and foreign exchange operations

¢ Wholesale Banking This segment comprises banking services / facilities to corporates and
other business entities,

¢ Retail Banking constitutes banking services/ facilities to individuals.
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Revenues and expenses directly attributable to each segment are included in determining the
segments result. Assets employed by a segment or assets that are directly attributable to that
segment are included in segment assets. Liabilities that result from operations of a segment, Head
office account and Reserves and surplus are included in segment liabilities. Segment revenue
includes earnings from external customers. All liabilities are managed by central treasury unit,
which pools all funds and lends to the business units at appropriate rates based on the relevant
maturity of assets.

Geographic Segments

The Bank renders its services within one geographical segment and has no offices or significant
assets outside India.

Segment reporting for the year ended March 31, 2017 is given below
{Rs in crore)

Sr. Particulars Treasury | Wholesale Retail Other Total
No. banking
business
1 Segment revenue 782.24 226.48 93.72 - 1,101.44
2 Less: Inter segment 102.35 89.14 93.72 . 285.21
revenue
3 Income from 679.89 136.34 - - 816.23
operations {1} - (2}
4 Segment results 422,95 40.03 (39.48) - 423.50
5 Unallocated expenses .
6 Operating Profit / 423.50
(loss) (4) — (5)
7 Income taxes (incl. 183.78
deferred tax)
B8 Extraordinary profit /
(loss}
9 Net profit / (loss) (6) 239.72
-(7)-(8)
10 | Segment assets 5,670.74 1,101.32 0.39 - 6,772.45
11 | Unallocated assets' | 53.20
12 | Total assets (10) + 6,825.65
{11)
13 Segment liabilities? 3,868.96 2,951.62 5.17 - 6,825.65
14 | Unallocated liabitities -
16 | Total liabilities {13} + 6,825.65
(14)
16 | Capital expenditure 0.39 0.11 0.05 - 0.55
17 | Depreciation 0.16 0.05 0.01 - 0.22

1. Represents advance tax (net) and deferred tax asset (net)
2. Includes share capital and reserves and surplus.
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Segment reporting for the year ended March 31, 2016 is given below

(Rs in crore)

Sr. Particulars Treasury | Wholesale Retail Other Total
No. banking
business

] Segment revenue 786.91 216.14 147.69 - 1,150.74
Less: Inter segment 90.40 100.32 147.69 - 338.41
revenue

3 Income from 696.51 115.83 - - 812.34
operations (1) — (2)

4 Segment resulis 256.71 50.81 (53.61) - 253.91

5 Unallocated expenses -

& Operating Profit [/ 253.91
(loss} {4) - (5)

7 Income taxes (incl. 109.25

deferred tax)

8 Extraordinary profit / G -

{loss)
9 Net profit / (foss) (6) - 144.66
(7}-(8)
10 | Segment assets 9,542.22 1,823.81 1.00 - 11,367.03
11 | Unallocated assets’ 55.99
12 | Total assets (10) + 11,423.02
(1)
13 Segment liabilities? 4,332.96 1,295.71 5,794.395 - 11,423.02
14 | Unallocated liabilities -
15 | Total labilities {13) + 11,423.02
(14)
16 | Capital expenditure 0.02 0.01 0.01 - 0.04
17 | Depreciation 0.59 0.18 0.12 - 0.87

1, Represants advance tax (net} and deferred tax asset (net)
2. Includes share capital and reserves and surplus.

21. Related Party Disclosures

As per AS - 18, Related Party Disclosure, issued by the ICAIl, the Bank's related parties are
disclosed below:

Parent of Head office
Credit Suisse Group AG

Parent and its branches
Credit Suisse AG and its branches

Enterprises under common control with whom the Bank has had transactions during
the year

Credit Suisse Consulting (India) Private Limited

Credit Suisse Securities (India) Private Limited

Credit Suisse Finance (India) Private Limited

Credit Suisse Business Analytics (India) Private Limited

Credit Suisse Business Management (India) Private Limited

Credit Suisse Services (India) Private Limited

-
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CJSC “Bank Credit Suisse (Moscow)”
Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited

Credit Suisse (Singapore) Limited
Credit Suisse Securities USA LLC

Key Management Personnel

In accordance with the RBI circular DBR.BP.BC No0.23/21.04.018/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015,
only the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, falls under the category of key management
personnel, hence, no disclosures pertaining to him are provided.

Chief Executive Officer of the Bank:

1. Mr. Ajit Hebbar (Interim Chief Executive Officer) — upto 23 August, 2015
2. Mr. Rajiv Baruah (Chief Executive Officer) - From 24 August, 2015

The Bank’s related party balances and transactions as on / for the year ended March 31, 2017

are summarised as follows:

{Rs in crore)

ltems Parent and Maximum Enterprises Maximum
its branches | outstanding under outstanding
during the common during the
year control year
Transactions during the year
Rent and reimbursements 2.88 7.33
Security deposit received . 2.55
Profit / {Loss) on derivative transaction {18.88) 22.41
Income for services rendered 3.85 -
Interest on borrowings 3.58 -
Interest on deposits - 51.48
Borrowings 1,186.76 -
Term Deposits - 3,701.90
Derivatives (Notional) 1,755.47 29,969.55
Closing balances
Payable to related parties 2.78 3.01 1.06 2.78
Security deposit receivable . - - 2.55
Mark to Market on derivatives 0.27 104.95 - 84.02
receivable”
Mark to Market on derivatives payable™ 20.09 135.66 - 134.86
Receivable from related parties 5.36 10.48 0.05 0.05
Interest payable 2.03 3.16 11.26 24.02
Current deposits - - 431.47 870.34
Term deposits - - 470.50 1,136.50
Borrowings 706.87 748.99 - -
Nostro Balance 0.06 0.19 217 3.95
Derivatives (Notional) 823.97 5,819.21 2,461.12

** Mark to Market on derivatives represents net receivable / payable at counterparty level as the required
e

information is not easily available.

5th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,
{f oy fApello Mills Compound,

N. M. Joshi Marg,

N



W
CREDIT SUISSE
Credit Suisse AG, Mumbai branch

The Bank’s related party balances and transactions as on / for the year ended March 31, 2016

are summarised as follows:

(Rs in crore)

Items Parent and Maximum Enterprises Maximum
its branches | outstanding under outstanding
during the common during the
year control year

Transactions during the year

Rent and reimbursements 7.85 9.1%

Profit / {Loss) on derivative transaction (13.38} 80.96

Income for services rendered 4.46 -

interest on borrowings* 0.00 -

Interest on deposits - 52.96

Borrowings 13.25 -

Term Deposits - 4,187.80

Derivatives (Notional) 6,215.29 32,333.57

Closing balances

Payable 1o related parties 0.08 6.18 0.71 2.72

Security deposit receivable - - 2.55 2.55

Mark to Market on derivatives 40.47 26.27 27.36 78.47

receivable”

Mark to Market on derivatives payable” 53.18 36.12 - 0.74

Receivable from related parties 0.35 1.82 0.14 0.14

Interest payable* - 0.00 3.59 20.89

Current deposits - - 8.20 1,350.20

Term deposits - - 832.45 1,336.45

Borrowings - 13.26 - -

Nostro Balance 0.10 0.14 2.29 63.72

Derivatives (Notional) 1,411.00 2,617.01 900.00 3,650.88

*Interest of borrowing from Branches is Rs 3,425 {March 2015: Rs 547,817)
** Mark to Market on derivatives represents net receivable / payable at counterparty level as the required

information is not easily available.

Material related party transactions are given below:

The following were the material transactions between the Bank and its related parties for the year
ended March 31, 2017. A specific related party transaction is disclosed as a material related party
transaction wherever it exceeds 10% of all related party transactions in that category.

Rent and reimbursements

Employee share expenses reimbursed to Credit Suisse Singapore Branch Rs 2.88 cr (Previous
Year: Rs 7.85 cr). Rent and other expenses reimbursed to Credit Suisse Securities (India) Private
Limited Rs 6.18 cr (Previous Year: Rs 3.56 cr) and Credit Suisse Consulting {India) Private
Limited Rs 0.29 cr (Previous Year: Rs 4.15 cr)

@
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22,

Profit / (Loss) on derivative transaction

Profit / (Loss) on derivative transaction from Credit Suisse London Branch Rs. {(20.49} cr
{Previous Year: (24.80) cr, Credit Suisse Singapore Branch Rs 1.34 cr (Previous Year: Rs 10.48
cr), Credit Suisse Services (India) Private Limited Rs 4.50 cr (Previous Year: Rs 84.96 cr) and
Credit Suisse (Singapore) Limited Rs 17.66 cr (Previous Year: Rs 4.55 cr).

Income for services rendered:

Income for services rendered to Credit Suisse Singapore Branch Rs 3.85 cr (Previous Year: Rs
4.46 cr) and Head office is “NIL" in current year (Previous Year: Nil)

Interest on borrowings

Interest expense on borrowings from Credit Suisse London Branch is Rs Nil (Previous Year: Rs
1,712) and Credit Suisse Singapore Branch is Rs 3.58 cr (Previous Year: Rs 1,712 ).

Interest on deposits

Interest expense on Term deposits to Credit Suisse Securities (India) Private Limited Rs 37.58 cr
{(Previous Year: Rs 40.61 cr), Credit Suisse Finance (India) Private Limited Rs 5.78 cr (Previous
Year: Rs 0.79 cr) and Credit Suisse Services {India) Private Limited Rs 4.16 cr (Previous Year:
Rs 8.85 cr).

Borrowings

Borrowings from Credit Suisse London Branch is Rs. 6.49 cr { Previous Year Rs. 6.63 cr) and
Credit Suisse Singapore Branch Rs 1,180.27 cr (Previous Year: Rs 6.63 cr).

Term Deposits

Term deposits placed by Credit Suisse Securities (India) Private Limited Rs 1,440.00 cr (Previous
Year: Rs 1,622.00 cr), Credit Suisse Finance (India) Private Limited Rs 1,043.00 cr {Previous
Year: Rs 230 cr) and Credit Suisse Services (India) Private Limited Rs 861.00 cr {Previous Year:
Rs 1,991.00 cr).

Derivatives (Notional)

Derivative transactions entered with Credit Suisse Singapore Branch Rs 24,615.01 cr (Previous
Year: Rs 24,225.63 cr), Credit Suisse London Branch Rs 1,754.40 cr (Previous Year: Rs
4,985.93 cr) and Credit Suisse (Singapore} Limited Rs 3,976.57 cr (Previous Year: Rs 6,359.06
cr)

Provision for income tax made during the year
(Rs in crore)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Provision for income tax (including deferred tax) 183.78 109.25
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23.

Provisions and Contingencies

The break-up of 'Provisions and contingencies’ included in the Profit and Loss Account is given

below:

(Rs in crore)

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Provision for Income Tax — Current

174.13

111.26

Provision for Income Tax - Deferred

9.65

{2.01)

Standard asset provisioning - including UFCE provision
of Rs (4.64) cr (Previous Year: 3.57 cr).

(11.23)

2.75

Country Risk provision

{4.94)

2.59

Total

167.61

114.59

24.

Floating provisions

The Bank has no floating provisions for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).

25.

Drawdown from reserves

The Bank has not drawn down any amount from reserves for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Previous Year: Nil).

26.

Disclosure of complaints

The following table sets forth status of customer complaints

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

a)

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the
year

b)

No. of complaints received during the year

c}

No. of complaints redressed during the year

d)

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

The following table sets forth status of awards

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

a)

No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of
the year

b)

No. of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen
during the year

c)

No. of awards implemented during the year

d)

No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year

27.

Disclosure on letters of comfort (LoCs) issued by the Bank

The Bank has not issued any letters of comfort for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Previous Year:

Nil).
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28.

29,

30.

iifi)

iv)

Provisioning coverage ratio
The Bank has no non performing advances as on March 31, 2017 {Previous Year: Nil).
Insurance business

The Bank has not earned fees/brokerage in respect of insurance broking, agency and
bancassurance business for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).

Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

Concentration of deposits
(Rs in crore)

March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Total deposits of twenty largest depositors* 956.91 4,048.70
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total
deposits of the bank 99.84% 60.45%

* Excludes Certificate of deposits.

Concentration of advances*
{Rs in crore)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers {including banks) 2.901.36 4,408.33
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total
advances of the bank 99.45% 96.56%

*Advances are computed as per definition of Credit Exposure including derivatives  furnished in
RBI's Master Circular on Exposure Norms
**Includes Exposure to CCIL

Concentration of exposures™
(Rs in crore)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 4,568.55 6,294.38

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers /
customers to total exposure of the bank on borrowers /
customers 84.10% 80.06%

**Exposures are computed based on credit and investment exposure as prescribed in RBl's
Master Circular on Exposure Norms.

**Includes Exposure to CCIL

Concentration of NPAs

The Bank has no NPAs as on March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).
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31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Sector wise NPAs
(Rs in crore)
Sl Sector March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
No. Qutstanding | Gross Percentage of | Outstanding | Gross Percentage of
Total NPAs Gross Total NPAs Gross
Advances NPAs to Total Advances NPAs to Total
Advances in Advances in
that that
seclor sector
A Priority Sector
1 Agriculture  and
allied activities - - - -
2 Advances to
industries sector
eligible as priority
sector lending 262.02 - 311.49
3 Services 1256.00 - 99.38 -
4 Personal loans - - - -
s 377.02 -| 41087 .
B Non Priority
Sector
1 | Agriculture  and
allied activities - - -
2 | Industry = - 310.00 -
3 | Services 722.82 - 1,098.94 -
4 | Personal loans = - _
Sub-total (B) 722.82 - 1,408.94 -
Total (A+B) 1,099.84 -1 1,819.81 -
Movement of NPAs

The Bank has no NPAs during the year March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).

Overseas assets, NPAs and Revenue

The Bank has no overseas operations and hence this disclosure in not applicable (Previous Year:

NA).

Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

There are no off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored by the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2017
{Previous Year: Nil)

Disclosures on Remuneration

Bank has complied with the Compensation Guidelines issued by RBI vide DBOD No.BC. 72

/29.67.001/2011-12 dated January 13, 2012, hence this disclosure is not applicable.
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36. Disclosures relating to securitisation

The Bank has not sponsored any SPVs for securitization transactions during the year and there is
no securitization transaction outstanding as at March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil).

a7. Credit Default Swaps
During the year, the bank has not entered into credit default swaps (Previous Year: Nil).

38. Intra-Group Exposures
(Rs in crore)

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Total amount of intra-group exposures 2.23 59.17
Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures 2,23 59.17
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the bank
on borrowers / customers 0.04% 0.79%
Details of breach of limits on intra-group exposures and regulatory
action thereon, if any. No Breach No Breach

39. Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

The Bank has no Unclaimed liabilities as at March 31, 2017 (Previous Year: Nil), hence this
disclosure is not applicable.

40. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

Unhedged foreign currency exposure of corporates poses risk to them and also to the entire
financial system. If the unhedged position is large, it can have serious consequences for the
solvency of corporates in the event of large depreciation of the home currency and can result in
large credit losses to the financing banks.

The bank has a policy of managing credit risk arising out of unhedged foreign currency exposure
of its borrowers. The Bank reviews un-hedged foreign currency exposures as part of its credit
analysis of all borrowers at the time of initial sanction as well as part of the annual renewal of
exposures. The Bank will also review the hedging policy of the counterparty as part its credit
analysis to assess the risks related to its foreign currency exposures. The risks related to un
hedged foreign currency exposures will be captured in the overall counterparty’s credit rating {for
e.g., if the corporate is running large un-hedged foreign currency risk, its overall rating will be
lower) which in turn will drive the credit risk premium to be charged to meet the minimum target
return on the Risk Weighted Asset (RWA). In addition, the Board of the Bank has also approved
specific criteria (based on amount of exposure, relative size of unhedged foreign currency
exposure with respect to net-worth, etc.) which if met would result in the Bank stipulating a limit on
un-hedged foreign currency positions of borrowers. Accordingly, this limit becomes part of the
approval conditions stipulated to the borrower and will be monitored accordingly.

The bank reviews the unhedged foreign currency exposure on periodic basis and maintains
incremental provision towards unhedged foreign currency of its borrowers in line with RBI
guidelines DBOD.No. BP.BC. 85/21.06.200/2013-14 issued on 15* January 2014 and
clarifications DBOD.No.BP.BC.116/21.06.200/2013-14 issued on 3 June 2014. The bank has
maintained provision of Rs 8.94 crores (Previous Year: Rs. 13.58 crores) and additional capital Rs
28.39 crores (Previous Year: Rs. 40.62 crores) on account of unhedged foreign currency
exposure of its borrowers as on March 31, 2017.
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41, Liquidity Coverage Ratio ('LCR’)

Quantitative disclosures

The Bank's LCR related information is disclosed for all four quarters for the year ending March 31, 2017.

The Bank's LCR related information is disclosed for all four quarters for the year ending March 31, 2017.

For the quarters ending June 30, 2016; September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2016, the quarterly
average is calculated based on simple averages of monthly data. For the quarter ending March 31, 2017,
the quarterly average is calculated based on simple averages of daily data.

(R i crorg)
Quarter Ended
Mar 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016 Sep 30, 2016 Jun 30, 2016
Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted | Weighted | Unweighte | Weighted Unweighte | Weighted Unweight | Weighted
Value Value d Value Value d Value Value ed Value Value
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) (average) | (average) | (average} | (average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
1 | Totat High Quality Liquid
Assets (HOLA)
2,050 2,018 3,182 3,173 3,283 3,263 2,502 2,485
Cash Qutflows
Retaii deposits and
9 deposits from small
business customers, of
which: 167 17 1,440 144 4,983 498 4,998 500
i Stable deposits B B B B ;
(i} Less stable deposits 167 17 1,440 144 4,983 408 4,908 500
3 Unsecured wholesale
funding, of which:
1,085 1,000 ar3 927 838 806 923 847
@ Operational deposits (all
counterpadies)
.. Non operational deposits
@iy ;
(all counterpariies) . .
1,085 1,000 973 827 898 BOG QU3 BaT
1 Secured wholesale
Funding 91 = 23 = 401 = 981 =
5 Additional requirements,
of which 208 204 196 194 284 268 348 300
Outflows related to
® derivative exposures and
other collateral
e 202 202 196 194 84 268 348 300
Qutflows related to loss
(i) of funding on debt
products
(i) Credit and kiquidity
Tacilities 6 2 - 5 -
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5 QOther contraciual funding
obligations 53 53 161 181 501 501 394 394

7 Other contingent funding

bligati

obligations . - z A N ) }

8 TOTAL CASH
OUTFLOWS 1,615 1,274 2,793 1,426 7,067 2,073 7,645 2,041

Cash Inflows

9 Secured lending (e.g.
fEeVErse repos) T22 - 1,312 - 13 - 352 -

Inflows from fully

Ly perfarming exposures
g 235 209 511 459 1,121 1,085 1,046 1,046
1 Other cash inflows R . . . _ i R
12 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 1,016 209 1,823 459 1,252 1,085 1,398 1,046
Total Total Total Total
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
Value Value Value Value
2z el 2016 3,173 3,263 2,465

29 Total Net Cash
QOutflows 1,085 967 988 985

23 Liquidity Coverage
Ratio (%) 190 308 330 248

The Bank's LCR related information is disclosed for all four quarters for the year ending March 31, 2016.

ifs in crore}
o Quarter Ended _
Mar 31, 2016 D:_c 31, 2015 Sep 30, 2015 Jun 30, 2015
f T
Particulars Total Total Totat Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted | Weighted | Unweighted ighted | Unweighted | Weighted | Unweighted | Weighted
Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
{average) | (average} {average) | (average) faverage) | (average) {average} = (average)
High Quality Liquid Assets | _
1 Total High Quality Liquid
Assets (HOQLA)
2,325.99 | 2,259.37 3,220.30 | 3,165.01 3,759.34 | 3,666.63 3,516.77 | 3,414.72
Cash Outflows |
i Retail deposits and
2 deposits from small
business customers, of
which:
5,031.32 il 503.13 4,922.44 | 49224 4,930.66 493.07 4,744.87 474.49
il Stable deposits N |‘ . o
{it) | Less stable deposits
| ] . 5,031.32 503.13 492244 | 49224 4,330.66 493.07 474487 | 474 49 |
3 Unsecured wholesale
funding, of which:
926.70 909.85 713.30 696.79 | 749.54 736.47 353.76 346.34
il Operational deposits {all
2 counterparties)

,g.'P‘sSOC ar
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il Non operational deposits
{all counterparties)
926.70 909.85 713.30 696.79 749,54 736.47 353.76 346.34
fiii} | Unsecured debt . . - - 5 .
a Secured wholesale
Funding 1,380.00 - 187.99 - 997.11 - 982.23 -
Additional requirements,
5 .
of which
243.21 243.21 478.62 478.62 443.00 430.00 441.45 441.45
Quiflows related to
W derivative exposures and
d other collateral
reguirements
243.21 243.21 478.62 478.62 421.33 421.33 441.45 441.46
tii) Qutflows related to loss of
funding on debt products
(i} Credit and liquidity
facilities 0 o 0 0 21.67 B.67
6 Other contractual funding
obligations 372.24 37224 315.68 315.68 278.05 278.05 228.49 228.49
e Other contingent funding
obligations . - 5 5 5
8 TOTAL CASH QUTFLOWS
7,953.44 | 2,028.43 6,618.03 | 1,983.33 7,398.37 | 193758 6,750.79 | 1,490.77
Cash Inflows
g Secured lending {e.g.
reverse repos) 62.25 - 315.36 - 66.67 1.68
Inflows from fully
10 X
performing exposures
1,124.21 1,073.15 277.82 277.82 451.34 378.40 1749.28 179.28
11 | Other cash inflows R . - 5 . .
12 | TOTVAL CASH INFLOWS
1,186.46 | 1,073.15 58317 277.82 518.00 378.40 180.54 179.28
Total Total Total Total
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
Value Value Value Value
21 | Total HOLA 2,259.37 3,165.01 3,666.63 3,444.72
22 | Total Net Cash Outflows
955.98 1,705.52 1,659.20 1,311.49
2 Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(%) 236.51 185.58 235.16 262 66
Note.- Data presented above are simple averages of monthly observations over the previous quarter (i.e. the average is calculated over a peried of 90
days).
)] Qualitative disclosure around LCR -

The Bank measures and monitors the LCR in line with the Reserve Bank of India's circular dated
June 9, 2014 on "Basel lll Framework on Liquidity Standards - Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR),
Liquidity Risk Monitoring Tools and LCR Disclosure Standards.

Banks are required to maintain High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) of a minimum of 100% of its
Net Cash Outflows by January 1, 2019. However, with a view to provide transition time, the
guidelines mandate a minimum requirement of 60% from January 1,2015 and a step up of 10%
every year to reach the minimum requirement of 100% by January 1,2019.
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42.

The Bank has maintained LCR ratio above the required regulatory limit of 70% (from April 1, 2016
to December, 31 2016) and 80% (from January 1, 2017). This is achieved through maintaining
HQLA above net cash outflows.

The Bank has been maintaining HQLA primarily in the form of SLR investments over and above
mandatory requirement and corporate bonds issued by non-financial entities with rating AA- and
above. SLR investments as well as the corporate bond portfolio of the Bank considered for HOLA
is well diversified and would provide the Bank with adequate and timely liquidity, where required.

The Bank's funding sources are driven from a diversified mix of unsecured deposits from
individuals; corporates and financial institutions; repo borrowings via Clearcorp Repo Order
Matching System (CROMS) or RBI's Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) and CBLO borrowings.
There was a decline in the Bank's deposit base in the quarter ended December 31, 2016
following the maturity of Foreign Currency Non-Repatriable (FCNR) deposits. As such, the Bank
additionally funds its operations with the issuance of certificate of deposits, interbank borrowings
and borrowings from head office.

The Local Management Committee of the Bank has empowered ALCO to monitor the liguidity
profile of the Bank. Funding strategies are formulated by ALCO in line with business requirements
and growth sirategy. The objective of the funding strategy is to achieve an optimal funding mix
which is consistent with prudent liquidity, diversity of sources and servicing costs. Diversification
of the funding mix in terms of investor types, products and instruments is an important part of
liquidity risk and funding management within the Bank. The Bank estimates daily liquidity
requirement of the various business segments and manages the same on consolidated basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Bank during the year Rs 5.40 crore (Previous
Year: 4.74 crore)
Amount spent during the year:-
(Rs in crore)

Sr | Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
No Paid Yet to Total Paid Yette | Total
during be paid during | be paid
the year the year

i) | Construction / acquisition - - . . - R
of any asset

ii) | On purposes other than (i) 5.49 - 5.49 4.62 -| 462
above
Total 5.49 - 5.49 4.62 -| 4.62
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43, Deferred tax asset / liability

Other Assets include deferred tax asset (net) of Rs 15.11 crore {Previous Year: Rs 24.76 crore).

The break-up of the same is as follows:

(Rs in crore)

Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Deferred tax asset arising out of:
Employee Benefits 5.30 7.33
Standard asset provisioning 8.92 13.78
Depreciation 0.70 0.80
Others 0.19 2.85
Total 15.11 24,76
Deferred tax liability: S S
Total - -
Deferred tax asset (net) 15.11 24.76

44, Leases

The Bank entered into leasing arrangements for commercial properties. The lease rental of Rs
4.20 crore (Previous Year: Rs 4.62 crore) has been included under Operating Expenses — Rent,
Taxes and Lighting (Schedule 16 1) in the Profit and Loss Account,

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

(Rs in crore)

Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Not later than one year 0.33 4.14
Later than one year and not later than five years - 15.97
Later than five vears - 0.33
Total 0.33 20.44

45, Other expenses

Other expenses include cost allocation expenses of Rs 2.25 crore (Previous Year: Rs 2.48 crore)
and Corporate Social Responsibility expense of Rs 5.49 crore (Previous Year: Rs. 4.62).

46. Small and Micro Industries

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force
from October 2, 20086, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and
Medium enterprises. There have been no reported cases of delays in payments to micro and small
enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such payments.

47. Provision for long term contracts

At the year end, the Bank has reviewed long term contracts (including derivative contracts) and
since there are no material foreseeable losses, no provision has been made on such contracts
other than the standard asset provision (refer note 10) as stipulated by RBI.
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48.

49,

Specified Bank notes held and transacted

The Bank believes that the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated March 30, 2017 regarding
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from Bth November, 2016
to 30th December, 2016 is not applicable to banking companies. Accordingly, the disclosures

prescribed under the said notification have not been made by the Bank.

Comparative figures

Figures of the previous period have been re-grouped to conform to the current year presentation.
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